STATE OF NEVADA
EXECUTIVE BRANCH AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

APPROVED MINUTES

December 6, 2012

The Executive Branch Audit Committee and the Division of Internal Audits commenced on
December 6, 2012, at the Capitol Building Annex, Guinn Room, Second Floor, 101 N. Carson
Street, Carson City, Nevada. The meeting was video conferenced between the Capitol Building
Annex and the Grant Sawyer State Office Building, Governor’s Office, 5655 East Washington
Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Governor, Brian Sandoval, Chairman
Lieutenant Governor, Brian Krolicki
Secretary of State, Ross Miller
Treasurer, Kate Marshall
Controller, Kim Wallin

Attorney General, Catherine Cortez Masto
(Absent, Schedule Conflict)

Dana L. Bridgman, CPA, Public Member

DIVISION OF INTERNAL AUDITS

STAFF PRESENT: Steve Weinberger, Administrator
Lori Hoover, Financial Manager
Warren Lowman, Executive Branch Audit Manager
Vita Ozoude, Executive Branch Audit Manager
Dennis Stoddard, Executive Branch Auditor Ii
Jeff Landerfelt, Executive Branch Auditor Il
Ashwini Prasad, Executive Branch Auditor IlI
Lynette Pagaling, Executive Branch Auditor Il
Laura Briscoe, Auditor Il
Connie Boynton, Administrative Assistant IV

OTHERS PRESENT: Copy of sign-in sheet available, contact Connie
Boynton,  Administrative  Assistant IV  at
cboynton@admin.nv.qov .

The agenda for this meeting was posted in accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law and
was mailed to groups and individuals as requested.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 2

A. Call to Order
Governor Sandoval, Chairman, called the meeting to order and welcomed those present.
Roll was called, and a quorum was noted. Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto was
absent.

B. Public comments
Governor Sandoval addressed the public for comments in Carson City and Las Vegas.
There were none.

C. For Possible Action — Approval of the May 1, 2012, Executive Branch Audit
Committee Meeting Minutes.

Governor Sandoval asked the members if they had comments regarding the minutes. There
were none.

Motion: Move for approval of the minutes of the May 1, 2012 meeting.
By: Lieutenant Governor Krolicki

Second: Secretary of State Miller

Abstention Dana Bridgman, Public Member

Vote: Motion passed five to zero with one abstention.

D. Presentation of the Division of Internal Audits’ Six-month Follow-up Status Reports.
1. Vita Ozoude, Executive Branch Audit Manager for Division of Internal Audits, presented
the follow-up for the Department of Taxation (Department) originally presented in May 2012.

Mr. Ozoude introduced Chris Nielsen, Executive Director, to represent the Department of
Taxation.

Mr. Ozoude stated the audit focused on:
v" Enhancing Audit Coverage and Collection Processes.

He said Internal Audits issued ten recommendations, eight were fully implemented and two
were partially implemented. Mr. Ozoude would be discussing the two partially implemented
recommendations.

Mr. Ozoude said on recommendation number five, upon updating the risk assessment, the
Department should evaluate reallocating audit resources. The Department updated the risk
assessment and determined that audit positions within Nevada were properly allocated. He
said the Department represented one audit position in Washington State was vacant, and
will be allocated to another high volume state outside Nevada by December 2012.

Mr. Ozoude indicated out-of-state audits generated more assessments per audit; therefore,
the Department should evaluate reallocating more resources to areas that provided the
highest benefits to the state.

Mr. Ozoude stated that the other partially implemented recommendation was number ten to
transfer additional debts to the Controller. The Department stated that while no additional
debts had been transferred, they had scheduled a meeting with the Controller to discuss
additional transfers. They anticipate full implementation by the end of December 2012.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 3

Mr. Ozoude concluded his presentation and asked the committee if they had any questions.

Mr. Nielsen, Executive Director for the Department commented on recommendation number
five, regarding the reallocation of audit resources. He said since the recommendation had
been drafted the Department moved one in-state auditor to Utah which he considers high
risk and filled the Washington vacancy. Mr. Nielsen said as vacancies became available,
they would consider doing a work program, if their needs required an additional auditor
outside the state.

Mr. Nielsen said with respect to audit recommendation number ten; he met with Controller
Wallin and discussed transferring additional debt. He said part of the challenge had been
coming up with an IT solution to systematically transfer debt over. The Department has
taken on the IT solution in-house and it is completed. They were in the process of
transferring approximately 22,000 accounts over. He stated once that was completed, they
would systematically transfer debt over on a monthly basis to keep the age of the debt as
fresh as possible.

Mr. Nielsen asked the committee if they had any other questions.

Governor Sandoval asked if the Department had also reallocated their in-state resources or
prioritization of who they audit within the state as well to get a higher return on their audits.

Mr. Nielsen said they had offices in Carson, Henderson, Las Vegas and Reno where they
did reallocate, based on the number of businesses, to keep it even. He said, with respect to
in-state audits, they tweaked their risk assessment to be more skewed toward taxable sales.
Mr. Nielsen said even though it had been less than a year, their numbers of audits were
down, and the numbers of dollars were up, and that told him it was working.

Controller Wallin stated they agreed to send debts less than $500.00 to her office, and, the
Department would send any debt older than a year to her office. She also said she sent the
Department an MOU to waive the requirement for sending her the debts after 60 days,
however, the MOU has not yet been returned to her office.

Controller Wallin asked if the Department was going to make sure, they look for debt offset
when refunding money, because they had an incidence where the Controller's Office
delayed a $600,000 mining fee refund , as the company actually owed the State $930,000.

Mr. Nielsen said the Department had been participating in the debt-offset program and that
the mining claim fee was an unusual circumstance, because the mining refund claim was
something that was a one-time shot and was brought to the Board of Examiners (BOE) on a
regular basis. He said the debt-offset program was part of their debt collection strategy.

Controller Wallin stated that mining audits were on a three-year rotation and asked how
many had been audited and how many were left to be audited.

Mr. Nielsen said he did not realize they would be talking about audits today but as reported
in the Mining Oversight and Accountability Commission, they had completed the audit of the
Barrick Mines; which he believed was roughly 40 or 50 percent of the market share. He
also said they were completing the audit of Newmont and anticipated billing them in the next




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 4

month or so. Once that was complete Mr. Nielsen said, those two mining companies
constituted over 90 percent of the market share. He also anticipated being able to audit the
rest of the mining companies within the next two years and said in his opinion, they were
well on track with respect to auditing the mining companies. Mr. Nielsen said the Governor
mentioned earlier that as far as resources, they now had two dedicated mining auditors,
something they didn't have before, and he said that was a reallocation under the prior
director.

Controller Wallin asked for a follow-up on that.

Mr. Nielsen said he would submit the report to the Mining Oversight Accountability
Commission if that would be helpful.

Controller Wallin asked to be provided with a risk assessment plan by the Department and
asked if they had one.

Mr. Nielsen explained their risk assessment is composed of audit leads and risk factors. He
said they first determine if the lead is credible and if so, they conduct an audit regardiess of
risk. Regarding risk factors, he said certain industries historically were determined to be
higher risk than others, such as the construction industry. An accounting office would be
low risk, because they typically did not purchase tangible personal property or have much
tax liability.

Mr. Nielsen said they also look at taxable sales and use tax reported, given as an indicator.
He stated that those were the two primary components of their audit selection as far as the
risk category.

Controller Wallin said the bigger audits would be where they would get the most return for
their money. She asked how many audits had been conducted in the last six months based
on the risk assessment versus based on leads.

Mr. Nielsen reported he could follow up with the committee to get that information. He said
you had to be careful with just going by the size of taxable sales. He said it was their
experience, the larger retailers in — state, for example, Wal-Mart and Target, were all point
of sale and were audited and more times than not would come up with a zero tax liability.
He said they were so sophisticated they tend not to make mistakes as far as collecting sales
tax. Mr. Nielsen said car dealers and construction contractors are more of a manual
bookkeeping type of operation, and those were the type they found problematic.

Controller Wallin asked if the ones that were out-of-state were the biggest problem.

Mr. Nielsen said large out-of-state companies did produce larger audit results, and he
thought part of the reason was, for example, many companies lease equipment in Nevada.
He said the equipment was not physically located in Nevada, but there would be a lease
and a sublease after that. He said the instant tax liability for sales tax, for example,
sometimes was not picked up or was picked up at the wrong point. He also said there were
assets that the larger companies purchase and they do not realize that they were subject to
use tax.

Mr. Nielsen added they were working towards reallocating some of their existing resources
to concentrate on the larger out of state companies.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 5

Controller Wallin asked to be provided with written policies for collection processes.
Controller Wallin commented that there were no policies two directors ago.

Mr. Nielsen’s understanding was that the policies had been provided to her office, but would
provide them again.

Controller Wallin asked if it would be possible for the Department to provide a spreadsheet
of the outstanding accounts and the collection efforts that were performed.

Mr. Nielsen indicated he would have to talk with his IT staff to do a query, because it was
something that could not be done manually.

Controller Wallin asked what was being done with delinquent accounts.

Mr. Nielsen responded they had an automated process. He explained when a taxpayer fails
to file a return, they receive notice, and from there a revenue officer, depending on the dollar
amount, would call the taxpayer. He said many of the officers have existing relationships
with those businesses and found that was the most effective way to get them to file a return.
He said their goal was to get them to file a return rather than chase them.

Controller Wallin asked how long it takes before the Department of Taxation generates a
return based, on the best information available, to force them to file a return.

Mr. Nielsen said it was dependent on the size of the account. He said if someone had filed
$200 worth of tax liability per month then that account would not be priority. He said if a
large casino had failed to file, they would get a phone call the day after the return is due. He
stated it was dependent upon the manual intervention, and manpower that was allocated
towards the size of the account.

Controller Wallin stated she wanted a follow-up on the amount due from taxpayers who
have received tax bills based on best information available and complete follow-up on their
audit progress and risk assessment.

Governor Sandoval complimented Mr. Nielsen for what they had done in response to the
audit.

2. Warren Lowman, Executive Branch Audit Manager for Division of Internal Audits, would
present the follow-up for the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation
(Department), Workforce Investment Board.

Mr. Lowman introduced Frank Woodbeck, Director and Dennis Perea, Deputy Director to
represent the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation.

Mr. Lowman said there were ten recommendations regarding the Department’s
management of the Workforce Force Investment Act in Nevada and the need to limit
expenditures by the local boards to maximize funds for Work Force training programs. He
said the audit found the southern board was spending about twice the rate as the northern
board on administrative costs.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 6

Mr. Lowman said there had been no action on three recommendations related to becoming
a single state board and the Department is implementing procedures that enhance reporting
requirements by the local boards. Mr. Lowman said as a result, the Department expects to
better monitor expenditures and address the remaining audit recommendations.

Mr. Lowman concluded his presentation and asked the committee if they had any questions.

Governor Sandoval asked if the reason there was no action on the three recommendations
related to becoming a single state board was because the Department of Labor denied the
request to form a single state board.

Mr. Lowman confirmed that was correct.
Governor Sandoval asked Mr. Woodbeck if he had any comments about the presentation.

Mr. Woodbeck said knowing the Department of Labor’s stance regarding a single state
board he had a plan B which was to ask for an executive order, which they received, to
tighten the compliance of expenditures and investments based on current guidelines within
the Workforce Investment Act and make those guidelines stricter than they had been before.

He also said in the interim, the management of both boards had resigned and with the new
management, there had been dramatic changes with the southern board in terms of their
staffing levels and subsequent expenses. He said between the two measures they
achieved much of what they intended.

Governor Sandoval said he thought the Board of Examiners’ (BOE) just approved a contract
for a firm to continue auditing those issues.

Mr. Woodbeck stated correct and they would also strengthen their in-house team regarding
auditing and monitoring. He said the monitoring would be on an ongoing basis regarding all,
administrative and program expenses moving forward.

Governor Sandoval said he assigned between 15 and 20 new members of the State
Workforce Investment Board and he wanted confirmation on a meeting date.

Mr. Woodbeck said the Board would meet on January 10, and included 35 members, 18 of
which came from the private sector. He said they would present the different compliance
policies that would enact the Governor’s Workforce Investment’s Board executive order and
the new guidelines.

Governor Sandoval asked Mr. Lowman if that satisfied any concerns with the action that had
been taken.

Mr. Lowman said the actions are in place to implement the recommendations.
Governor Sandoval asked the committee if they had any further questions.
Lieutenant Governor Krolicki commented that the issue could have been problematic and

Washington D.C. didn’t make it any easier. He thanked Mr. Woodbeck for what he did with
his plan B and noted people are well served by their actions.




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 7

Governor Sandoval echoed the Lieutenant Governor's comments. He added some of the
credit goes to the local Workforce Investment Boards for making the changes and
recognizing that there were some problems that needed to be corrected. Governor
Sandoval said he was confident in moving forward, and it would work well.

E. Presentation regarding ongoing follow-up requested by the Committee
Mr. Lowman presented the Committee requested follow-up on the Division of Mental Health
and Developmental Services and the monitoring of doctor attendance. This was Mr.
Lowman’s fourth follow-up of the audit of doctor attendance at Rawson Neal Hospital. Dr.
Tracey Green, State Mental Health Director, represented the Division of Mental Health and
Developmental Services.

Mr. Lowman stated the original audit found doctors were not working a full day at the
Rawson Neal Hospital in Las Vegas.

Mr. Lowman said the current review shows that doctor attendance has improved, although
doctors were still not working a full day. They were working the most hours since our audit,
approximately 85 percent of their day.

Mr. Lowman said the actions implemented by Administrator Whitley and Dr. Green had
improved doctor attendance in both the hospital units and the patient observation units. He
said the division expects these actions will continue to improve doctor attendance at the
Rawson Neal Hospital in the future.

Mr. Lowman concluded his presentation and asked the committee if they had any questions.

Governor Sandoval asked Mr. Lowman if he equated not working a full day with not being
physically present in the building a full day.

Mr. Lowman said he equated not working a full day as not being in the building or accounted
for during the hours of their assigned shift.

Governor Sandoval asked if part of this was from physicians doing notes outside the
building.

Mr. Lowman said they had accounted for that at the last review.
Treasurer Marshall stated they had similar issues with the doctors in Elko County.

Governor Sandoval stated they also had an issue with prisons and it was further on the
agenda.

Treasurer Marshall said she understood the doctors had more to do than meeting with
patients and providing proper medical care. She said she didn’t understand why we would
pay them for hours they’re not doing something associated with what they’re getting paid to
do by the taxpayer. She asked for clarification, and if there were further goals, regarding the
issue.

Mr. Lowman replied doctors were being paid at Rawson Neal Hospital for their work in the
hospital unit for eight hours and in the patient observation unit for a ten hour shift. He said




Executive Branch Audit Committee
Meeting Minutes

December 6, 2012

Page 8

they looked at the time when they were in the hospital and any other documentation that
could be provided that the doctor was at a meeting or attending training.

Treasurer Marshall said she did not know how much time the doctors were paid for when
they were not doing something associated with what they are being paid to do by the
taxpayer. The Treasurer also wondered why we can’t get the doctors to work a full day and
if it is because doctors were being paid so little that we would lose them if we made them
work more hours, or if there was another reason.

Governor Sandoval gave Dr. Green the opportunity to explain.

Dr. Green said she thought much of it was about accountability and being able to correctly
access the information from doctors. She said they had been trying to look at what is the
best way to get doctors to keep track of the time they were not physically in an environment
where they could swipe their timecard, because there were multiple environments.

Dr. Green said they set up a coding system for doctors to use when they are away from the
facility and gave examples such as legal court consults, resident supervision, case studies,
professional meetings, community visits, and recruitment or retention activities. She said
the doctors need to improve tracking outside time, and she had confidence the doctors
understood that, though they were exempt, they were required to work a 40-hour workweek.
Dr. Green explained the exemption is how the workweek is split, meaning that it may not be
eight hours every day, that it might be a ten hour day or a Saturday, Sunday or after hours.
She said the 15 percent they were trying to gather is really due to tracking the additional
times.

Treasurer Marshall stated she understood that it might be the doctors were not able to track
the additional times and asked if there was some penalty or recourse if they were not getting
what they contracted for.

Dr. Green confirmed.

Dr. Green said they presently have an extensive tracking system, and on two occurrences
since the previous update, they had taken back hours from the physicians. She said they
have consultation sessions where the medical director of psychiatry was having one-on-one
sessions to really assess the situation and help track all the hours they work. She and Mr.
Lowman had spent nearly 40 hours going through every doctor's record trying to, find out
who goes to lunch but doesn’t write it down. She stated it was tedious work.

Treasurer Marshall asked if there was recourse for the taxpayer if they were not working the
hours.

Dr. Green replied, absolutely. She said they request they return those hours by reducing
their hours in the next pay period, or request they take their paid time off (PTO).

Governor Sandoval looked at the bar chart, and stated they had come a long way in six
months.

Dr. Green agreed.







